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          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: The New York

          3  City Council Housing and Buildings Committee is

          4  called to order.

          5                 Today's agenda is a continuation, is

          6  a second hearing on proposed Intro. No. 198. Since

          7  we held our first hearing on the 8th of February,

          8  but since our first hearing, this bill has been the

          9  subject of a great deal of intense discussion. The

         10  Council has made every effort incorporate all of the

         11  various components of the City affected by sprinkler

         12  regulation, and as all legislation, it is a series

         13  of what hopefully comes out represents good common

         14  sense and good public policy for the interest of the

         15  City of New York and its residents and visitors.

         16                 So, at this time I am going to turn

         17  to Commissioner Von Essen.

         18                 We will hear from the Commissioner,

         19  and I must say that we received a number of requests

         20  to testify today, but most of whom have already

         21  testified and who have written to us, and we know

         22  that there are issues that many of you in the room

         23  are concerned about. This is not the end of the

         24  process. This is not the end of the process. Today

         25  is a major step in improving the life and safety
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          2  conditions for New Yorkers.

          3                 Just before Commissioner Von Essen

          4  begins his testimony, I want to have the Clerk call

          5  Council Member Provenzano's name for the purpose of

          6  a vote. As you know, this meeting has been delayed

          7  for a number of hours and she has an urgent

          8  appointment that she must make, so for the purpose

          9  of voting on proposed Intro. No. 198, the Clerk will

         10  call Council Member Provenzano's name.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Provenzano.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: I vote

         13  yes. I am really sorry, but I will watch you on

         14  Channel 74.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Mr. Chair,

         16  may I be afforded the same, although I will stay,

         17  since we are voting?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: If you will just

         19  relax just for a moment, I will get right back to

         20  you?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Okay.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: As I was saying

         23  before I was reminded of the request from the

         24  members, and I will certainly get back to you,

         25  Council Member Marshall, while we would like to hear
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          2  from all of you, I think we have heard from most of

          3  you, either at the last meeting or we received a

          4  number of letters and communications in person and

          5  otherwise, and so the only person that we will hear

          6  from today is the Administration represented by our

          7  Fire Commissioner Von Essen.

          8                 Commissioner, if you will identify

          9  yourself and the members of your staff.

         10                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: Good

         11  afternoon. Thank you.

         12                 Thanks again, for the opportunity to

         13  testify before this Committee. We have had the

         14  opportunity to review the draft legislation and

         15  believe that it is a good first step. We look

         16  forward to continuing to work with the Council to

         17  ensure that the task force initiatives are enacted

         18  into law.

         19                 As you know, Mayor Giuliani's Task

         20  Force on High Rise Fire Safety issued their report

         21  yesterday. That Task Force, Chaired by Deputy Mayor

         22  for Operations Joe Lhota, made a number of

         23  recommendations that will greatly enhance the fire

         24  protection mechanisms already in place in New York

         25  City for residential dwellings.
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          2                 The issues that the Task Force

          3  reviewed include measures that we believe will have

          4  an immediate effect and can make significant

          5  progress in reducing property damage and hopefully

          6  preventing unnecessary injuries and deaths.

          7                 The major proposals of the Committee

          8  include:

          9                 1) The installation of sprinklers in

         10  all newly constructed residential buildings,

         11  including both high-rise and low-rise buildings, as

         12  well as one- and two-family homes.

         13                 2) The installation of sprinklers in

         14  existing buildings, residential buildings that are

         15  substantially renovated - whenever the cost of

         16  alternations to a residential building, performed

         17  within any 12-month period, exceeds 30 percent of

         18  the assessed value or the replacement value for the

         19  residential portion of the building.

         20                 3) The installation of an emergency

         21  voice communications systems, for use by the

         22  Department in fire emergencies, in existing

         23  non-sprinklered residential buildings over six

         24  stories or 75 feet in height.

         25                 4) The promulgation of rules by the
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          2  New York City Fire Commissioner requiring owners of

          3  all residential buildings, except one- and

          4  two-family dwellings, to prepare and distribute the

          5  building occupants and employees a Fire Department

          6  approved fire safety plan, as well a other fire

          7  safety education materials.

          8                 5) The incorporation of the NFPA

          9  sprinkler system standards for low rise multiple

         10  dwellings and one- and two-family dwellings into the

         11  New York City Building Code, with appropriate

         12  modifications to recognize the unique diversity of

         13  buildings in New York City.

         14                 The initiatives that are in your

         15  current draft: Sprinklers in new residential

         16  buildings with more than three families, signage

         17  inside of apartment doors, the requirement for a

         18  fire safety plan, the agreement to use different

         19  materials in the construction of sprinklers, as well

         20  as the requirement to include fire safety

         21  information with the window guard statements, are

         22  changes that many Fire Commissioners have long

         23  believed would be beneficial to the lives of all

         24  City residents.

         25                 As I said earlier, we believe that
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          2  this proposed legislation is a good first step,

          3  however, when we leave here today, let's not forget

          4  the words of Priscilla Lina. Priscilla, very

          5  eloquently, while fighting back tears, testified

          6  before this Committee; of the terror she experienced

          7  at the West 60th Street fire two days before

          8  Christmas. She told the Committee that she and her

          9  neighbors needed communication capability in an

         10  emergency situation in order to receive instructions

         11  on what to do.

         12                 She went on to stress the need for

         13  additional fire safety information to be distributed

         14  to high rise dwellers, and emphasize the need for

         15  communication.

         16                 As we move head, let us not forget

         17  what she and her neighbor said.

         18                 I am just concerned that you said

         19  today is not the end of the process. If that is

         20  true, then we are very happy with what is going on.

         21  But it shouldn't be the end. If that is what we are

         22  saying but we really don't mean it, we are not being

         23  honest with those people.

         24                 We are here today because of those

         25  people on 60th Street, because of the horror of what
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          2  happened throughout that building, the inability for

          3  us to get word to those people.

          4                 We are policy, our request from the

          5  beginning was not to try and have an onerous

          6  position that sprinklers would be retrofitted

          7  throughout all of the buildings in this City. We

          8  felt that communications would be something to give

          9  all of those people throughout this City right now

         10  something that would help them right away. This bill

         11  does not do that, and that is our only real problem

         12  with it.

         13                 We would love to see the one or

         14  two-families, but we understand we can't get it all.

         15  We would like to. And we really -- this is not

         16  politics here, this is nothing but what we believe

         17  to be improvements in fire safety. If we don't do

         18  something about communicating with people that are

         19  out there already throughout this City, we are not

         20  doing our job.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you,

         22  Commissioner.

         23                 As I stated, this is not the end of

         24  the process. Not for a long shot. It is a

         25  work-in-progress. Every day we will be visiting this
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          2  and revisiting this, and I just hope that we won't

          3  have any catastrophic attention-getters. We are not

          4  going to wait for them, we are going to be proactive

          5  as it relates to the issue that we address today.

          6                 So, I want to thank you very much for

          7  your testimony. Thank you staff and the Mayor's

          8  Office for the collaborative manner in which we

          9  discussed these issues, and we will be in touch.

         10                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: Well, we were

         11  hoping there were going to be a lot of issues

         12  discussed and talked about.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: We have been

         14  talking for the last 24 hours almost non-stop. We

         15  haven't even gotten much sleep.

         16                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: Well, what we

         17  are trying to say is that there is a misconception I

         18  think by a lot of your constituents that sprinklers

         19  are a product that are constantly going off,

         20  flooding or causing, would cause havoc in a one- or

         21  two-family home. We just would like to help you

         22  convince those folks that that is not the case.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: We certainly

         24  look forward to working with you, and there are

         25  differences of opinion on the Committee as to what
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          2  represents good, prudent, public policy.

          3                 We have arrived at a level of

          4  agreement at this point that we think is prudent and

          5  is in the best interest of the City, all aspects of

          6  it, residents and those who provide shelter and

          7  those who have to fight the fires in these various

          8  buildings and edifices.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 Now, Commissioner, then before I have

         11  some of my members ask questions, I will have Terzah

         12  Nasser, Counsel to this Committee, explain the bill

         13  that is before the Committee this afternoon.

         14                 Terzah.

         15                 MS. NASSER: Terzah Nasser, Counsel to

         16  the Housing and Buildings Committee.

         17                 I am going to summarize the

         18  provisions of the bill for the record.

         19                 The proposed bill, Intro. No. 198-A,

         20  would require the installation of sprinklers in

         21  newly constructed buildings with four or more

         22  dwelling units.

         23                 The bill was crafted with the

         24  understanding that the Department of Buildings will

         25  permit plastic piping in buildings for the
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          2  installations of sprinkler systems.

          3                 The installation of sprinklers will

          4  be required in certain existing buildings upon

          5  alterations, categories being, when the cost of

          6  making any alterations within any 12-month period

          7  exceed 50 percent of building value, upon conversion

          8  to a residential building with more than four

          9  dwelling units, and also for alterations of spaces

         10  upon conversion or when the cost of alterations

         11  exceed 50 percent, alterations to those spaces.

         12                 In addition, there will be a

         13  prohibition on tampering with sprinklers. There will

         14  also be a notice requirement such that the occupants

         15  of multiple dwellings would receive notice that

         16  would provide fire safety and evacuation procedures.

         17                 In addition, there will be additional

         18  testing requirements which include an actual

         19  operational test of an automatic sprinkler system.

         20                 That ends the summary.

         21                 I actually would like to read into

         22  the record, there is a copy of proposed Intro.

         23  198-A, that some of the members and members of the

         24  public have. There are a few corrections to the

         25  draft that is circulating right now.
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          2                 On page three, Section 27-123.2 of

          3  the Code will read, the title will read provision of

          4  sprinklers in existing buildings. The language that

          5  said requiring sprinklers is scratched. It says

          6  provision of sprinklers in existing buildings. That

          7  is the title.

          8                 On page 14, for those of you who have

          9  it, there is actually a modification to what is

         10  section 18 of this bill, which deals with the

         11  testing of the sprinklers and/or stand pipe systems,

         12  such that -- well, okay, that is Subdivision --

         13  actually, it would be paragraph 3 of subdivision C

         14  will read, a system of automatic sprinklers in

         15  buildings classified in occupancy group J3 shall be

         16  maintained in perfect working order. The language

         17  that referred to one and two-family dwellings has

         18  been removed.

         19                 And then on page 16, section 22, the

         20  effective date, the language, second line from the

         21  bottom, which refers to alterations. As it says,

         22  alterations, addition, repair or change, we are

         23  deleting the words addition, repair and second

         24  repair, which was a typo. So that line would read,

         25  alteration, or change of occupancy or use are filed
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          2  with the Department of Buildings, et cetera.

          3                 And that is the end of the changes to

          4  the draft that is circulating around that some of

          5  you do have in your possession.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Now I am going

          7  to recognize Cathy Cudahy, the Director of our

          8  Infrastructure. Human Services Division.

          9                 MS. CUDAHY: I just want to clarify

         10  one thing -- two things.

         11                 Plastic pipes that are being

         12  authorized today are for installation in residential

         13  buildings only, okay?

         14                 The second thing that I just would

         15  like to clarify is that this is a continuing process

         16  which we really started in the past few weeks, and

         17  there are two issues in particular that we have

         18  agreed with the Administration to work on in the

         19  coming days and weeks. Those issues are the

         20  installation of sprinkler systems in one-, two- and

         21  three-family homes, and also the installation of a

         22  communication system in multiple dwellings that may

         23  not have sprinkler systems installed by the Year

         24  2002.

         25                 Those are two issues that we want to
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          2  continue to discuss with the Administration, and we

          3  will start tomorrow morning doing that.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Mr.

          6  Chairman, towards that end I would ask Ms. Cudahy to

          7  explore some specific cost estimates as contained in

          8  the report that addressed the cost on sprinklers on

          9  installation, the cost analysis in terms of the

         10  communication system would be something that we

         11  would like to be able to see as we can pursue this

         12  in terms of our discussion, so that is a request I

         13  have made of Ms. Cudahy.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay,

         15  Commissioner, we have been delighted to hear your

         16  version of the issue today, and Council Member

         17  Michels has a question.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I just have

         19  one question, and it comes up somewhat often.

         20                 On page 14 of the bill, talking about

         21  Section 27-4267.3, we talk about the promulgation of

         22  rules and regulations; could you tell us when you

         23  plan on promulgating those rules?

         24                 There doesn't seem to be any period

         25  of time, and in our experience it has been that it
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          2  takes some time to promulgate these rules.

          3                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: Stanley, are

          4  you talking about the education, signage and

          5  everything else?

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Yes, I am

          7  talking about the fire prevention notification,

          8  planning and education, right.

          9                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: We would like

         10  to do that as quickly as possible.

         11                 Remember, this is not -- you know we

         12  were thinking this was a draft that we were working

         13  on. This is a final product --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I just want

         15  to get a ball park figure --

         16                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: We would like

         17  to do this as quickly as possible.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: This is a

         19  very important section.

         20                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: These are

         21  things that can be done very quickly.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Yes.

         23                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: What we found

         24  in all of this work was that the communication

         25  system is a very complicated issue.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Yes, it is.

          3                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: And the

          4  speakers and wiring and all of the different types

          5  of building we are talking about has made it

          6  complicated and we understand that that issue is

          7  something that we need further work on. And if the

          8  Task Force is going to continue to work on that

          9  particular issue especially, then we understand the

         10  urgency to try to get this piece done as quickly as

         11  possible.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Are you

         13  integrating it with the intercom systems that some

         14  of the buildings have?

         15                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: Yes.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Where they

         17  have them. Because there is a law, in my

         18  recollection, that buildings are supposed to have

         19  intercom systems.

         20                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: But there are

         21  all different types of systems --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Of intercom

         23  systems, correct.

         24                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: So we found

         25  this is not as easy as you might think.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Oh, I

          3  understand that. That is why I want to get an idea

          4  what we are talking about.

          5                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: This is

          6  different. This is something that we can come up

          7  with a sign, we can come up with a method, we can

          8  sit down with the real estate people and say within

          9  six months this has to be done, I would think. We

         10  will try to do that.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Council Member

         12  Boyland.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: I just have a

         14  concern, in a district such as mine in Brooklyn

         15  where we are doing a lot of construction, new

         16  construction, and we are trying to encourage

         17  developers to come into our communities and build

         18  affordable housing, how do we come about keeping a

         19  cap on the amount spent? I mean, the cost factor is

         20  of grave importance to a lot of the developers

         21  within my community. Although we understand how

         22  important it is to have sprinkler systems within our

         23  home, we have to figure out a way also to adjust it

         24  where it is not sky-rocketing, where therefore we

         25  don't have to come back and put more subsidies on
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          2  affordable homes within my community.

          3                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: The new

          4  reference is we will make it less expensive, the use

          5  of plastic, the discounts that the insurance

          6  companies give we believe is going to more than pay

          7  for it over the course of the mortgage of the

          8  building. So, this is a good investment, it is going

          9  to save people money on the housing you are talking

         10  about.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: The new

         12  affordable homes that are coming in.

         13                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: We believe

         14  that.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay, thank

         16  you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Council Member

         18  Linares, followed by Council Member Michels -- I

         19  mean, Council Member Marshall.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Commissioner,

         21  good afternoon.

         22                 I have noticed some degree of

         23  discomfort or uneasiness after making your

         24  presentation with regards to the bill, and what has

         25  been worked out.
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          2                 After listening to our attorney, our

          3  representative, explain the context around which we

          4  brought this to this point, between the Council and

          5  the Administration, I was wondering what is it that

          6  concerns you in terms of what needs to be followed

          7  through, this is work-in-progress, and there is a

          8  commitment that I understand has been agreed upon,

          9  today in fact, with the two parts.

         10                 And, so, I was just wondering what is

         11  it that may be of discomfort or may be of concern to

         12  you at this point, after having heard our Council

         13  explain what still needs to be followed through

         14  with?

         15                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: Well, having

         16  been around a little while, I am just concerned that

         17  we may lose the moment. I think that we had a couple

         18  of horrible tragedies that brought attention to

         19  issues that the Fire Department would have liked to

         20  have happened many years ago.

         21                 We have an opportunity now to

         22  accomplish that. I think that you have made a major

         23  step forward in accomplishing some of it.

         24                 I think if we walk away without

         25  resolving the communications part of this, we have
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          2  done not as much as we should be doing for all of

          3  those people that are out there in those buildings

          4  today.

          5                 Separate from that is the one- and

          6  two-family issue, that we believe is a mistake by

          7  not having it in this legislation today. But if we

          8  can continue to talk about it, we will try to

          9  convince you to maybe modify this legislation down

         10  the road, like I say, we are happy but we are

         11  concerned that because you don't have it in there

         12  today, the communication is complicated, and maybe

         13  none of us are ready for that.

         14                 We believe that the one and

         15  two-family issue is not complicated, that the people

         16  might have the wrong understanding. When you watch a

         17  Frito Lay commercial on TV and you see an attractive

         18  woman walk through a room and every sprinkler goes

         19  off in that room, we think that the media and TV and

         20  the world out there thinks that when a sprinkler

         21  goes off, every sprinkler in the room goes off. That

         22  is not the case, and we just wish we had that

         23  opportunity to convince you, so maybe you would know

         24  that your constituents are concerned over something

         25  that is not real.
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          2                 The cost we believe pays for itself

          3  over time, and we believe that that sprinkler that

          4  puts out 15 gallons a minute is much, much safer and

          5  does much less damage than a fire company that comes

          6  with a two and a half inch hose and puts out 250

          7  gallons of water a minute, and maybe burn down your

          8  house and maybe lose some of your loved ones. So, we

          9  believe that is an issue that we are missing here

         10  today on the one and two-family homes.

         11                 The other part of it, like I said, we

         12  agree it is complicated and we want to work further

         13  with you. We had hoped to get it all, we don't have

         14  it all here.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: I just want

         16  to say, the reason I raise this is because it is my

         17  impression that what has brought us to this point

         18  and what constitutes a mandate for us to continue

         19  aggressively addressing this is the fact that we

         20  have tragedies, loss of life, that is unfortunate,

         21  and it is expected of us, both the Administration

         22  and the City Council to do no less. So, it is my

         23  impression that what brings us here today, the best

         24  of intentions and commitment to proceed on this

         25  matter, because it is a matter of life and death,
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          2  and because we want to prevent a catastrophe or a

          3  fatality such as the one that brought us to this

          4  point.

          5                 So, I believe that we are making this

          6  a public expression, especially to the victims, and

          7  that I think should carry a sense of indication of

          8  the commitment that is there for us to proceed

          9  working together as we have done so far.

         10                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: Thank you for

         11  that commitment.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Well,

         13  Commissioner, as opposed to losing the moment, I

         14  think we are seizing the moment to do something now,

         15  as opposed to protracted and extended conversations

         16  on this issue, if we didn't take the moment today to

         17  do something, you might not have been present but we

         18  have been working almost 24 hours, this meeting was

         19  scheduled for 1:00, agreements had not been reached

         20  with the Administration, which is your boss, the

         21  Mayor. Now, if they didn't inform you as to what we

         22  were doing, or if you still had your own point of

         23  view, we respect that, but we believe that what we

         24  have accomplished today, is as far as we can go

         25  today legislatively, because we can't do everything
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          2  it doesn't mean we can't do some things.

          3                 I believe the bill that we will be

          4  voting on today will represent a major step in

          5  protecting the life and property of New Yorkers.

          6                 Does it go all the way? Do we talk

          7  about retrofitting, and what about those people that

          8  live in existing buildings, not only are we talking

          9  about that, I mean we would want to propose and

         10  provide 100 percent but we can't do it, so today

         11  this bill, 198, represents the point where we are

         12  now. And we will continue to go forward, and I

         13  assure you we will not let this issue come to the

         14  back burner, because you won't permit us to do it.

         15                 Council Member Marshall.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Yes.

         17                 Commissioner, certainly the loss of

         18  life is a compelling mandate for us to do all that

         19  we can to save lives, and I know that is the bravest

         20  and that is your motto.

         21                 I do want to commend you on your

         22  educational program. I have seen it a few times in

         23  my district where members of the Fire Department

         24  come out, even give out smoke detectors, and I was

         25  surprised there were people in the room who had no
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          2  smoke detectors in their home and they were glad to

          3  get them. And those who took for a neighbor, et

          4  cetera. And that is moving ahead and I think we all

          5  learned a lot, how to work with fire extinguishers

          6  and many things, and I urge you to please continue

          7  that program and be aggressive with it because I

          8  know that people got information that day that they

          9  had never gotten before.

         10                 Now, the two areas that you are

         11  concerned with, one is communication, actually it's

         12  a lot cheaper to wire out a communication system

         13  than it is to put in sprinklers, so that I think

         14  that is something that will certainly be tackled. I

         15  for awhile represented Leffrak City and there was a

         16  terrible fire and we actually lost a couple of

         17  people because people didn't know what to do, just

         18  as this fire, and I sat through that compelling

         19  testimony the other day.

         20                 Also, for one- and two-family homes I

         21  would suggest that probably even the market is going

         22  to help us because people might want to do this in

         23  their own homes, once the word gets out, and I think

         24  all of the attention that has been given to

         25  sprinklers is going to have some sort of a life of
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          2  its own, but I am sure that our Committee will

          3  continue to work on this and to perfect it, but

          4  having this bill is a breakthrough and I think that

          5  it is a good beginning. And you heard our Chairman

          6  assure you that we are going to keep on going and we

          7  will.

          8                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Council Member

         10  McCaffrey.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Thank you

         12  very much, Mr. Chairman.

         13                 Commissioner, and let me just

         14  reiterate the commitment that has been made by the

         15  Chair, certainly as the sponsor. Let me just say,

         16  when I sponsored this legislation, I did not have

         17  the support of the Administration, I just want to

         18  state that for the record. You know that as well as

         19  I do and everybody in this room knows that.

         20                 So, you know, I understand the point

         21  better than some. Not you, and I am not talking

         22  about you directly, but some in the Administration.

         23  And so we have seized the moment on this. Remember

         24  where we were at the hearing which we were talking

         25  about, seven stories or above, now we are talking
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          2  four units or more, and that is a considerable

          3  distance in which we come and I would ask that you

          4  acknowledge that. I mean, that is a vast distance in

          5  which we have come in terms of positions.

          6                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: Walter, I

          7  thought I did acknowledge that.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Okay.

          9                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: If I hadn't,

         10  believe me, I do.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: And we

         12  certainly agree with you in terms of the concepts

         13  here and we would look toward the ones, twos and

         14  threes, although I have to say the report does not

         15  give us much information in a number of aspects, and

         16  one of the things we asked about, what is the effect

         17  in terms of dampening construction in the City of

         18  New York, that is not contained in the report, now

         19  these other aspects, and we would look to that.

         20                 Let me just ask you, though, one of

         21  things that is disturbing, when we talk about

         22  seizing the day is, on this task force served the

         23  Commissioner of HPD, absent from the task force was

         24  the Chair of the New York City Housing Authority,

         25  what are we about to do? What is the Administration
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          2  about to do about New York City Housing Authority

          3  units? What is it going to do to improve the fire

          4  safety beginning today?

          5                 Is it going to put in the

          6  communication systems and the Housing Authority

          7  units today? Is it going to put in communication

          8  systems and HPD units today?

          9                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: Walter, they

         10  were on the task force. NYCHA was on it.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: I don't see

         12  them listed. If they were, I don't see them here.

         13                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: Paul

         14  Graziano, the General Manager of the New York City

         15  Housing Authority, sat in on most of the discussions

         16  that were working with Buildings and Fire

         17  Department.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Okay, fine.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: You know Mr.

         20  Graziano well.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: So, based

         22  upon that, where are the recommendations here as to

         23  what the Administration is going to do, which

         24  doesn't require action legislatively to now upgrade

         25  the safety in terms of the Housing Authority
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          2  locations and the HPD locations?

          3                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: Now that the

          4  legislation is finalized, the Administration will

          5  figure out how it affects the housing and plan

          6  accordingly.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: As we must

          8  deliberate on ones, twos and threes, you must now

          9  deliberate on Housing Authority and on HPD. Extend

         10  to us all of the same courtesy as we extend to you

         11  as to the importance of the deliberation process.

         12                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: Enough said.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Thank you

         14  very much, Mr. Chairman.

         15                 Let me say to you, I thank you very

         16  much and I thank the staff for working on this. I

         17  thank the Fire Commissioner and his staff for their

         18  deliberations in terms of this. This is an important

         19  measure. As someone who began this process nearly

         20  two years ago on this specific piece of legislation,

         21  this piece of legislation has come a long way in

         22  providing for an enhanced safety for the City of New

         23  York.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Council Member
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          2  Michels.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Yes, just

          4  following up with Mr. McCaffrey's questioning, and

          5  by the way, I want to give a lot of credit to Mr.

          6  McCaffrey for doing an extraordinary wonderful job

          7  here.

          8                 But the City right now has got the

          9  main influence with respect to the Housing

         10  Authority, I believe, NYCHA, and also the buildings

         11  in the jurisdiction of HPD, and it would seem to me

         12  that we don't have to wait really to implement all

         13  of the things that the Administration really wants

         14  us, we should do this as soon as possible. Can we

         15  expect really a huge thrust of the work being done

         16  on those buildings, and on these particular issues?

         17                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: I can't speak

         18  for the thrust of implementation on a lot of these

         19  measures for Housing. I can only tell you that our

         20  input, our meetings with them will encourage that.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: You know,

         22  because we really believe that, and then as you do,

         23  I know, that these are very good measures and

         24  measures that should be done. So it is important

         25  that we should implement them where we can as soon
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          2  as possible, mainly in the Housing Authority and

          3  NYCHA buildings and in the buildings in the

          4  jurisdiction in HPD.

          5                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: Okay.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you,

          7  Commissioner.

          8                 Okay, Council Member Linares.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: I just want

         10  to follow up on Council Member Michels',

         11  Commissioner, on his questions.

         12                 Most public housing that we have, it

         13  is my understanding, are concentrated in communities

         14  of color, and I think that the question he was

         15  asking is, in terms of public housing, why couldn't

         16  we step up to try to comply with those particular

         17  properties in particular? Public housing that is.

         18                 What would prevent --

         19                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: I am not sure

         20  exactly what you mean. There is not a lot of issues

         21  as far as retrofitting that are going to affect,

         22  this legislation will affect housing, not a lot of

         23  retrofitting issues.

         24                 As far as going forward with all new

         25  construction, they will be part of that. But the
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          2  communication system that we talk about, we will

          3  talk about in the future, certainly is part of all

          4  housing.

          5                 But other than that, and these issues

          6  -- the communication system is something they are

          7  working on, and like I said, the same complications

          8  that it is for all of the other buildings throughout

          9  the City is the problem that housing is dealing with

         10  right now.

         11                 But it is absolutely the intention to

         12  abide by and to be part of all of those improvements

         13  that we are asking everyone else to do at housing.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Let me just

         16  conclude by saying, any property owner who wants to

         17  put in speakers, sprinklers, put them anywhere,

         18  there is no prohibition against putting them in. And

         19  I will bet you the Fire Department would be

         20  available even to give some suggestions if our

         21  citizens would call and say, well, what do you

         22  suggest if I wanted to implement this measure in my

         23  building.

         24                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: Absolutely.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay. So, with
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          2  that, Commissioner, thank you so much for your

          3  testimony and your cooperation and we will be in

          4  touch on an ongoing basis because this is a

          5  work-in-progress.

          6                 Mr. Clerk, roll call, please.

          7                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: On Intro. No.

          9  198-A.

         10                 COMMISSIONER VON ESSEN: Thank you

         11  very much.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: You are welcome,

         13  sir.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Spigner.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Just briefly to

         16  explain my vote. I have been very close to Council

         17  Member McCaffrey's work in putting this legislation

         18  together and I have learned a lot about the

         19  issues, much that I am satisfied with, and I must be

         20  honest and say there are pieces of it that I am not

         21  satisfied with, but recognizing what the real world

         22  is, sometimes you have got to take what you can and

         23  move ahead to the next point, and I think that

         24  Intro. 198 does represent a step in the right

         25  direction, and, therefore, I wholeheartedly cast an
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          2  aye vote for this legislation.

          3                 Continue the roll call.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Michels.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Mr. Chairman,

          6  may I be temporarily excused to explain my vote?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Certainly,

          8  Council Member Michels.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I very

         10  affirmatively cast my vote in favor of this

         11  legislation of 198-A and ask to be named as a prime

         12  sponsor, with the permission of Mr. McCaffrey who

         13  has done such yeoman's work on this legislation,

         14  together with you and the staff, and I just want to

         15  say that I think this is a revolutionary piece of

         16  legislation, which I am sure is going to save lives

         17  we can't save at this particular time, and as you

         18  say, this is a first step in the right direction, it

         19  is what has to be done to make sure that the

         20  citizens of this City are safe. We are now using

         21  materials in home building, some of which aren't as

         22  safe as we would like it to be, so it is really

         23  important that people, especially in high rise

         24  buildings, where it is difficult to get the

         25  machinery up there, receive the safety of these
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          2  instrumentalities, the instrumentalities of fire

          3  prevention and the limiting of fire.

          4                 So, I vote aye, and I compliment Mr.

          5  McCaffrey and the staff and the work they have done.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Continue the

          7  roll call.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Dilan.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MALAVE-DILAN: I vote

         10  yes.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Linares.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: May I be

         13  excused to explain my vote?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Council Member

         15  Linares.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: I would also

         17  like to echo some of the remarks made previously

         18  with regards to the leadership played by Council

         19  Member McCaffrey in bringing this piece of

         20  legislation to bear.

         21                 In the context of the tragedies and

         22  the loss of life that we have experienced, I think

         23  it is one step but it is a very, I think it is a

         24  giant step in the right direction. Clearly there is

         25  commitment to continue, and I would like to
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          2  acknowledge the leadership of the chair and the

          3  staff in working to make this possible.

          4                 I think we wouldn't be here, and I

          5  like to acknowledge that we have been able to bring

          6  things to this point because the Administration also

          7  working was willing to facilitate this positive and

          8  important step. And let's hope that we continue on

          9  this path with yet other important work that we need

         10  to do to make sure that everyone is safe in our

         11  City, at least from fire.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Continue the

         13  roll call.

         14                 Have you voted?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: I will vote

         16  yes, in the affirmative, on the piece of

         17  legislation.

         18                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Continue the

         20  roll call.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Marshall.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: May I be

         23  excused to explain my vote?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Council Member

         25  Marshall.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: There is an

          3  expression that the buck stops here and clearly I

          4  think the action of the Council, when we look at it,

          5  Councilman McCaffrey introduced this bill before,

          6  Councilman McCaffrey introduced this bill prior to

          7  the fires, the horrible fires that we had in

          8  Manhattan, and to tell you the truth, at the last

          9  hearing I know that Councilman Spigner, I know he

         10  had a lot of concerns about getting this bill

         11  across. It means that a lot of persuasion,

         12  discussion has to take place in order for this bill

         13  to get to where it is now.

         14                 In addition to that, in even the

         15  health of his own lovely wife, he moved this date up

         16  and he persisted in having this meeting.

         17                 So, I think that the Council has

         18  clearly stated their case, we are concerned and we

         19  are moving. I am glad that now the Administration

         20  understands and is willing to even make this bill

         21  even more comprehensive than it is even now.

         22                 So, I definitely vote aye and I am

         23  very proud of what we have done so far.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Continue the
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          2  roll call.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Boyland.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Mr. Chairman,

          5  may I be excused to explain my vote?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Certainly,

          7  Council Member Boyland.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Thank you

          9  very much, Mr. Chairman.

         10                 I clearly support this bill, but also

         11  I would also just like to make recommendations in

         12  terms of what I was speaking to the Fire

         13  Commissioner about, in terms of the incurred expense

         14  on and keeping a cap on the incurred expense, in

         15  terms of the piping that is used, in terms of the

         16  sprinklers that is used, from metal to plastic,

         17  those are some of the things we must be vigilant of

         18  and keep our eye on in terms of the development,

         19  such in a community like mine where we are now

         20  beginning to look onto the forefront of development

         21  in terms of affordable housing, in terms of economic

         22  development, we want people to build safe houses,

         23  but we also want to have establishments that are

         24  affordable for our communities, middle class

         25  communities.
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          2                 And to sum all of that up, I do

          3  support this legislation. Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Continue the

          5  roll call.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Ognibene.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER OGNIBENE: Can I

          8  explain my vote?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: You bet.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER OGNIBENE: I think one

         11  of the things that we have learned in the years that

         12  we have been here practicing our profession as

         13  legislators is that often you don't get all of the

         14  things that you desire in a piece of legislation,

         15  things that you believe have efficacy. Certainly

         16  everybody who made recommendations to adjust this

         17  piece of legislation had the best interest of the

         18  people of this City of New York in mind, and many

         19  times there are things that wind up in legislation

         20  that we think ought not to be there. But I think on

         21  balance it is our intent on both sides of City Hall

         22  to ensure that the best piece of legislation is

         23  developed the best as possible to protect the public

         24  safety and health and welfare of the people of the

         25  City of New York, and I think for the purposes of
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          2  today that we have gone as far as we can go, and I

          3  rely on the Speaker's, the Chairman's assertions

          4  that this is a work-in-progress, and I hope that we

          5  can continue to improve it.

          6                 My congratulations do go to Walter

          7  McCaffrey. I know Walter works very diligently on

          8  many issues, and to the Chairman to the Committee,

          9  who takes an intense interest in these matters,

         10  accordingly I vote aye.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: By a vote of

         12  eight in the affirmative, none in the negative, with

         13  no abstentions, the item is adopted.

         14                 Please sign the reports.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: There being no

         16  other business at this time before this Committee,

         17  this hearing is adjourned.

         18                 (Hearing concluded at 5:01 p.m.)
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